ORBAY
COUNCIL g ~a =y
Wednesday, 8 July 2015

4 LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE N\

A meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee will be held on
Thursday, 16 July 2015

commencing at 9.30 am

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus,
K Torquay, TO1 3DR /

Members of the Committee

Councillor Manning .
' Councillor Lang
Councillor Brooks

Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or
language please contact:
Kay Heywood, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR
01803 207026
Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
www.torbay.gov.uk

(i)




(a)

(b)

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Election of Chairman/woman
To elect a Chairman/woman for the meeting.

Apologies
To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any
changes to the membership of the Committee.

Declarations of interests

To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of
items on this agenda

For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the
matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form should
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect
of items on this agenda

For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the
item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter. A
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.)

Urgent items
To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent.

Taxi Driver Report

To consider an application for a Drivers Licence which is outside
Policy requirements.

(ii)

(Pages 1-12)



Agenda ltem 5

QRBAY
ey

Report No: Public Agenda Item: No

Title: Application for Torbay Council Driver’s Licence

Wards All

Affected:

To: Licensing Sub-Committee On: 16™ July 2015

Key Decision: No

Change to No Change to Policy  No
Budget: Framework:

Contact Officer: Steve Cox
Telephone: 01803 208034
B E.mail: Steve.cox@torbay.gov.uk

1. What we are trying to achieve

1.1  This report concerns an application for a Torbay Council Driver’s Licence, where
the Applicant does not meet Torbay Council’'s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire
Licensing Policy (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Policy’) requirements. This report
is to consider whether the licensed driver is ‘fit and proper person’ to hold a
Torbay Council Driver’s Licence.

2. Recommendation(s) for decision

2.1 It is recommended that Mr Michael Bailey’s application for a Torbay Council
issued Drivers Licence be refused.

3. Key points and reasons for recommendations

3.1 By the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976,
Torbay Council is the Licensing Authority in respect of Hackney Carriages,
Private Hire Vehicles and their drivers within Torbay.

3.2 Sections 51 and 59 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
respectively state that a district council shall not grant a licence to drive a private
hire vehicle or hackney carriage unless they are satisfied that the driver is a it
and proper person to hold a driver’s licence’.

3.3 Mr Michael Bailey made an application on the 7" April 2015 for a Torbay Council
issued Drivers Licence. In that application he submitted to Torbay Council that
he had a conviction for two offences under the Fraud Act 2006, relating to
‘making false representation to make gain for self or other which were
committed on the 25™ October 2010. However on receipt of his Disclosure and
Barring Service check, the actual date of conviction for these two offences was

Page 1


mailto:Steve.cox@torbay.gov.uk

21% June 2013.

3.4 In considering the Policy, Mr M Bailey’s conviction falls into the category of
dishonesty which states that ‘in normal circumstances any driver would have to
remain free from conviction for a period of three years’. Due to the circumstances
submitted by Mr Bailey, in that the conviction was a significant period after the
crime was committed, Mr M Bailey has requested a personal hearing before a
Licensing Committee.

3.5 Since granting the application is outside the Policy, the recommendation is that
the application is refused.

For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to the Supporting
Information.

Frances Hughes Assistant Director Community and Customer Services

Page 2



Supporting information to Report XX/2010

Al.

Al.l

Al.2

Al.3

Al4

Introduction and history

By the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976,
Torbay Council is the Licensing Authority in respect of Hackney Carriages,
Private Hire Vehicles and their drivers within Torbay.

Sections 51 and 59 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
respectively state that a district council shall not grant a licence to drive a private
hire vehicle or hackney carriage unless they are satisfied that the driver is a it
and proper person to hold a driver’s licence’.

Torbay Council determines the criteria that must be applied to meet the fit and
proper test’ within the Policy. It states

In setting out its Policy, the Licensing Authority seeks to promote the following
objectives:

e The safety and health of drivers and the public;

¢ Vehicle safety, comfort and access;

e To prevent crime and disorder and to protect the public;

e To encourage environmental sustainability.
Public safety is paramount, and this Licensing Authority seeks to ensure through
its licensing regime that all taxi and private hire vehicles are fit for purpose and
that their drivers and/or operators are fit and proper persons.

The Policy goes on to say;
1 General Policy
1.1 Each case will be decided on its own merits.

1.2  The Licensing Authority has a duty to ensure, so far as possible, that
applicants are ‘fit and proper’ persons to hold licenses and in the absence
of a judicially approved definition of “fit and proper”, the Licensing
Authority use the test of:

“Would the Officer charged with the ability to grant a licence allow their
son or daughter, spouse or partner, mother or father, grandson or
granddaughter, or any other person for whom they care, to get into a
licensed vehicle with the applicant alone”

The wording of this test originates from Button, J. T. H. (1999),
Taxis — Licensing Law and Practice, Butterworths, London.

1.3  The overriding consideration is the safety of the public. The Licensing
Authority has a duty to ensure so far as possible that those licensed to
drive hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are suitable persons to
do so, that they are safe drivers with good driving records and adequate
experience, sober, courteous, mentally and physically fit. An aspect of this
is the extent to which previous convictions, including but not limited to
convictions of dishonesty, sexual offences, traffic offences, violence and

Page 3



Al.5

Al.6

drugs, indicate that a person is not a fit and proper’ person and would not
take advantage of passengers or abuse or assault them.

Mr Michael Bailey made an application on the 7™ April 2015 for a Torbay Council
issued Drivers Licence. In that application he submitted to Torbay Council that
he had a conviction for two offences under the Fraud Act 2006, relating to
‘making false representation to make gain for self or other’ which were
committed on the 25" October 2010. A copy of his application form is attached in
appendix one. This is over three years ago. However on receipt of his Disclosure
and Barring Service check, the actual date of conviction for these two offences
was 21% June 2013, which is only a little over two years ago.

In considering the Policy, Mr M Bailey’s conviction falls into the category of
dishonesty which states that’ in normal circumstances any driver would have to
remain free from conviction for a period of three years’. Due to the circumstances
submitted by Mr Bailey, in that the conviction was a significant period after the
crime was committed, Mr M Bailey has requested a personal hearing before a
Licensing Committee.

2 Dishonesty

2.1 Itis essential for the public to have trust in hackney carriage and private
hire drivers. The practice of delivering unaccompanied property is indicative of
the trust that business people place in licensed drivers and operators. However,
there is scope for a dishonest driver to defraud a passenger by demanding more
than the legal or agreed fare or by taking a longer route to a destination. Tourists
and overseas visitors are particularly at risk from an unscrupulous driver. For this
reason, the Licensing Authority will take a serious view of any offences involving
dishonesty. The Licensing Authority will not normally consider an application until
a period of at least three years free from convictions has elapsed. More than one
conviction for this type of offence within the last five years will raise serious
doubts about the applicant’s fitness to hold a licence. In such cases, the
Licensing Authority may reject the application.

2.2 In the case of a licensed driver being convicted of an offence involving
dishonesty the Licensing Authority may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the
licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will be considered until a
period of at least three years free from the date of conviction of this type has
elapsed.

2.3  Offences of Dishonesty include:

* Theft

* Burglary

* Fraud including benefit fraud

* Handling or receiving stolen goods

* Forgery

» Conspiracy to defraud

* Obtaining money or property by deception

* Other deception

 Any similar offences of dishonesty where the conviction is less than three years
prior to the date of application

Page 4



Al.7

Al.8

Al.9

In strict adherence to the Policy, Mr M Bailey is required in normal circumstances
to remain free from conviction until 21%' June 2016. Therefore the application was
refused by Torbay Council Officers, as this criteria had not been met. Mr M
Bailey however wrote to Torbay Council’s Licensing team seeking a hearing
before a Licensing Committee. See Appendix two.

A letter dated 11™ May 2015 was sent to Mr M Bailey advising him of this
recommendation and requesting that he confirms that he wishes to proceed. See
Appendix three. This he has subsequently confirmed by email on the 29" May
2015.

Since granting the application is outside the Policy requirement, the
recommendation is that the application is refused.

A1.10 There is a right of Appeal against the Licensing Sub-Committees decision to the

A2.

A2.1

Magistrates’ Court within 21 days from the date of a Notice following the
decision.

Risk assessment of preferred option

Outline of significant key risks

A2.1.1Given the nature of the offences and the fact that three years has not elapsed

since Mr M Baileys’ conviction, there is in the author of this reports opinion, a
potential risk to the public should he be granted a Torbay Council issued Drivers
Licence.

A2.1.21f Mr Michael Bailey is not granted a Torbay Council issued Drivers Licence there

A3.

A3.1

A4.

Ad.1l

AS.

A5.1

is a risk of an Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court.
Options
The options are:

0] to grant Mr Michael Bailey application for a Torbay Council issued
Driver’s Licence

(i) to refuse Mr Michael Bailey application for a Torbay Council issued
Driver’s Licence

Summary of resource implications

There are some resource implications if there is an Appeal to the Magistrates’
Court.

What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and
crime and disorder?

There are no equalities or environmental sustainability issues. However, there

maybe a risk of crime if Mr Michael Bailey is granted a Torbay Council issued
Driver’s Licence

Page 5



A6. Consultation and Customer Focus

A6.1 There has been no public consultation on this matter and there is no requirement
for the Committee to consult the public in this matter.

A7. Arethere any implications for other Business Units?

A7.1 There are no implications for other business units.

Annexes

Appendix 1 Application from Mr Michael Bailey for a Torbay Council issued
Driver’s Licence

Appendix 2 Letter from Mr Michael Bailey requesting a Licensing Committee
hearing.

Appendix 3 Letter to Mr Michael Bailey dated 11" May 2015

Documents available in members’ rooms
None

Background Papers:
The following documents/files were used to compile this report:

Torbay Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy 2012

Page 6



APPLICATION FOR.

ORBAY

== For Office Use Only

Date Payment Received

Receipt Number

Driving Licence

Agenda ltem 5

pendix 1

wn e NSUJIas pureal T e

_

37

DVLA Number Issue Number Date Sent Date Receive;c_:;_'

TOWN POLICE CLAUSES ACT 1847 AND 1889
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976

APPLICATION / RENEWAL OF A LICENCE TO DRIVE A HACKNEY CARRIAGE OR PRIVATE HIRE VEHIQL

Please check all of the details below, filling in any empty boxes as required. Read the notesg
overleaf and then sign the form, and bring the completed form together with all relevant
documentation, as detailed in the accompanying Ietter, at the appointed time.

PLEASE USE BLOCK CAPITALS AND AMEND ANY INCORRECT DETAILS

SURNAME

FIRST NAME

DATE OF BIRTH

NATIONAL INSURANCE NO.

ADDRESS

POSTCODE

TELEPHONE NUMBER

MOBILE NUMBER

EMAIL

WILL THIS BE YOUR ONLY
EMPLOYMENT ?

Baxcey

MIcHAeC

_—

]
]
|
]

N
]



IF NO, THEN PLEASE GIVE
DETAILS OF ALL
OTHER EMPLOYMENT

HAVE YOU BEEN CONVICTED OF
ANY DRIVING OR CRIMINAL
OFFENCE?

(NB. Where this application is for
renewed Licence, list only those
~matters arising since the last
Licence was issued).

IF YES, WRITE DOWN THE
DETAILS BELOW:-
{All convictions must be disclosed,
confinue on separate sheet if
necessary).

DATE
OFFENCE

SENTENCE

ARE THERE ANY
PROSECUTIONS PENDING
AGAINST YOU?

IF YES, PLEASE GIVE DETAILS
OF THE ALLEGED OFFENCE AND
DATE OF COURT HEARING:-

HAVE YOU EVER SUFFERED
FROM ANY INJURY OR ILLNESS,
WHETHER PHYSICAL OR
MENTAL, WHICH MAY AFFECT
YOUR DRIVING CAPABILITIES?

iIF YES, PLEASE GIVE DETAILS:-

ARE YOU THE PROPRIETOR OF
THE LICENSED VEHICLE YOU
INTEND TO DRIVE?

nDrIveE N ScHeoo v~ Fof

MAaY Fleld  School

YES (X
NO O

=ravD 13)/ FALSE REPALESEAMTATION
$Actc 1t~ 2A85-lo-~ 2010

AL ~1o~ 2ot 0O

FravD RY FaLsSd pEPRESGAATATION

el ¥V

n'i% Aen D

H [ o & i 80 i-i-duﬂ-';

YES [
NO X

YES [
NO BX

YES

& O

TX011

Page 8



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

1. ltis an offence under Section 57 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 for
any person to knowingly or reckiessly make any false statement or omit any material particulars in
giving this information.

2. Any changes in the circumstances of the applicant or any other person or body which may render
any of the provided information invalid must be immediately reported to the Executive Head
Community Safety.

3. The Council reserves the right to confirm any of the provided information with any other body,
including the Devon and Cornwall Constabuilary.

4. The Council is under a duty to protect Public Funds, to this end it may use the information provided
within the council to prevent and detect fraud. It may also share this information with ofher bodies,
which look after Public Funds solely to prevent and detect fraud.

DECLARATION

I, THE APPLICANT WHOSE DETAILS APPEAR ON THIS FORM, HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD
THE NOTES HEREON AND DECLARE THAT THE INFORMATION SUPPLIED IS TRUE TO THE
BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF AND HEREBY APPLY FOR THE ISSUE TO ME OF THE
APPROPRIATE LICENCE.

SIGNED—— — 2 = —— DATE—— ST =

NOTIFICATION

Information held by Torbay Council complies with and is held in accordance with the UK Data Protection Act 1998.
The Information that you provide on this form will be used to pracess this appiication and may be disclosed io any
interested party under the requirements of Section 42 of the Town Palice Clauses Act 1847 or Section 51 of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

Information may also be shared for the prevention and detection of crime, for example with the police and other
agencies as required by law, such as the Audit Commission under the National Fraud Initiative data matching
exarcise,

You have a right of access to your personal information. if you wish to access your personal information or
exercise any of your rights under the legislation then please contact Torbay Council’s Information Governance
team on 01803 207 467. Further information can be found on the Information Governance pages on Torbay
Council's Internet site at, www.forbay.gov.uk

if you have difficultly in compieting this form in English, then help wiii be
offered. Please ring on 01803 208025 or email licensing@torbay.gov.uk.

TX011

QRBAY
RBAY

Page 9



Agenda ltem 5
J Appendix 2 2(AFS93.

Michael Baile

TORBAY COUNCIL |

~3 MAY 2015

To COMMUNITY SAFETY
Steve Cox

I have applied to become a taxi driver and on my application from. When it
asked for conviction

I thought the date of my conviction was 2010 but when the crb came back it
was 2013. I have spoken to Craig Noble and he has given me your name to
contact. As you can see on my crb the offence was in 2010. Please is it possible
to have a hearing as I still wish to become a taxi driver.

Yours sincerely

M S Bailey

Page 10



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3

COUNCIL - g~ . Please reply to: Mr Steve Cox
~ Community Safety

clo Town Hall
Castle Circus
TORQUAY
Devon

TQ1 3DR

My ref: R:217593/SJC
Your ref:

Telephone: 01803 208025
Website:

Date: 11 May 2015

Mr M S Baile

Dear Mr Bailey
Re: Application for a Torbay Council issued Drivers Licence

I am writing fo you with regard to your application to be a licensed driver to drive Hackney
Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles and your letter we received on the 5 May 2015.

Your application includes details of criminal convictions, and although the dates of the offences
were in October and November 2010, your conviction was on the 21* June 2013 and it is that date
that is relevant to our decision making. Our Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy
therefore applies that in normal circumstances you would need to remain free from conviction for
three years for the single conviction all be that there are two offences. | copy below the relevant
part of the policy.

Dishonesty

2.1 It is essential for the public to have trust in hackney carriage and private hire drivers. The practice of
delivering unaccompanied property is indicative of the trust that business people place in licensed
drivers and operators. However, there is scope for a dishonest driver fo defraud a passenger by
demanding more than the legal or agreed fare or by taking a longer route to a destination. Tourists
and overseas visitors are particularly at risk from an unscrupufous driver. For this reason, the
Licensing Authority will take a serious view of any offences involving dishonesty. The Licensing
Authority will not normafly consider an appfication until a period of at least three years free from
convictions has elapsed. More than one conviction for this type of offence within the last five years
will raise serious doubts about the applicant’s fitness to hold a ficence. In such cases, the Licensing
Authority may reject the application.

22 In the case of a licensed driver being convicted of an offenice involving dishonesty the Licensing
Authority may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further
application will be considered uniif & period of at least three years free from the date of conviction of
this type has elapsed.

2.3 Offences of Dishonesty include:

*» Theft

* Burglary

* Fraud including benefit fraud

* Handling or receiving stolen goods

» Forgery

» Conspiracy to defraud

Schools and services for children and young people » social care and housing e recycling, waste

disposal and clean streets « community safety » roads and transportation e town planning e
tourism, harbours and economic regeneration e consumer protection and licensing e leisure,

museums.f#’r}:gg'[@ ﬂ[ arts
if you require this in a different format or anguage, please contact me.



= Obtaining money or property by deception
+ Other deception

* Any similar offences of dishonesty where the conviction is less than three years prior o the date of
application

Aithough | am prepared to present a report to Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee, it will not be
until the 11" or 18" June 2015 due to the recent elections and the subsequent administrative

process subsequently required. I must also follow the requirements of the policy so | must
recommend refusal.

If you are still happy to proceed then please either reply to me by email at :
steve.cox@torbay.gov.uk or send me a letter to confirm that you wish to proceed and in return |
request that you keep the mornings of the two above dates in June free. | will send you a
committee report and further detail nearer the time.

If you have queries then please ring Craig Noble for advice.

Should you need to contact us please quote the reference number above.

Mr Steve Cox

Environmental Health Manager Commercial
Licensing and Public Protection

Yours sincerely

Please note that, apart from personal details subject to the Data Protection Act, information

contained in this letter may be divulged to members of the public under the Freedom of Information
Act 2000.

Page 12



	Agenda
	5 Taxi Driver Report
	2015 07 16 Taxi Driver Report (MB) App 1.pdf
	2015 07 16 Taxi Driver Report (MB) App 2.pdf
	2015 07 16 Taxi Driver Report (MB) App 3.pdf


